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WARRICK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

REGULAR SESSION

COMMISSIONERS MEETING ROOM

107 W.  Locust Street, Suite 303

Boonville, Indiana

April 22, 2013
4:00 P.M.

The Warrick County Commissioners met in regular session with Don Williams, President, Marlin Weisheit, Vice President and Rick Reid, Member

President Don Williams called the meeting to order.
Auditor Secretary, Angie Leslie, recorded the minutes.  Auditor, L.B. “Dixie” Dugan was in attendance.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
PUBLIC HEARING ~ With Respect to Not to Exceed $14,000,000 of Public Finance Authority Multifamily Housing 

Revenue Bonds (GMF-Indiana4, LLC Project), Series 2013A and Taxable Series 2013A-T
Don Williams:  Entertain a motion to recess the Commissioner Meeting for our Public Hearing.
Marlin Weisheit:  Motion made.
Rick Reid:  Second.
Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.
Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.
Rick Reid:  Aye.
Don Williams:  Okay, we are recessed for Public Hearing.  We have a Public Hearing with Request Not to Exceed

fourteen thousand dollars ($14,000.00) of Public Finance Authority Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds.
Roger Emmons:  Mr. President, Tyler Kalachnik is here representing GMF-Indiana4, LLC.
Tyler Kalachnik:  Yes, good afternoon, thank you, Commissioners, for the record I’m Tyler Kalachnik with Ice 
Miller in Indianapolis, actually…
Don Williams:  No, fourteen million ($14,000,000.00), I misstated it, a few zero’s there.
Tyler Kalachnik:  We’re acting as Bond Counsel to the Public Finance Authority so…not actually developer.  
This is with respect to the Governor Boon Square Apartments which is located on North Rockport Road in 
Boonville.  In January GMF-Indiana4, LLC entered into a purchase contract with the current owner who I 
understand is a 513C Charitable Organization for the acquisition of those apartments.  GMF-Indiana4, LLC is 
actually a sole member of a 501C organization called Preservation of Affordability Corporation which is a faith 
based charitable organization in Tennessee.  They own several projects in the State of Indiana as well as other 
states throughout the Mid-West and the South.  They are proposing to have the Public Finance Authority to 
issue fourteen million dollars ($14,000,000.00) of bonds for this complex as well as three (3) others located 
throughout the state.  And you may ask why they’re going through a Wisconsin entity which is the Public 
Finance Authority simply for efficiency in issuing the bonds instead of having to go to each jurisdiction and 
have the jurisdiction approve and issue bonds or enter into a Interlocal Agreement.  This provides economies 
of scale with just having to go to one place for issuance.  What else can I tell you, let’s see…the Public Finance 
Authorities of Wisconsin formed a commission that has the power to issue bonds throughout the country.  
They’ve done it on several projects already and the borrower intends to use the proceeds of the bonds in order 
to undertake some external and internal improvements to the project.  They intend to add some social services 
that don’t currently exist at these apartments and they’re hoping for a May closing date so with that the Public 
Hearing is a requirement of not only the Wisconsin entity statute but Federal Tax Law requires that each 
jurisdiction, which a project is located, have the Public Hearing and approval of that hearing so…I’ll turn it back 
over to you for any questions and also to open the public hearing.  
Don Williams:  I just want to make it clear to those out there that this fourteen million dollar ($14,000,000.00) bond
has nothing to do with the county other than we had to put our stamp of approval, in other words it’s no cost 
to Warrick County or any of the tax payers in the county.
Tyler Kalachnik:  That’s correct let me add…
Don Williams:  We’ve done this multiple times in the past for housing type bonding to get it done.
Tyler Kalachnik:  Yeah, it’s even…it’s further removed, I mean, the county’s not even…a party in any of the 
documents, it’s…
Don Williams:  I don’t have to sign anything; I like that the best about it.
Tyler Kalachnik:  No effect on the Constitutional Debt Limit, no obligation whatsoever on the bond.  
Don Williams:  Right, it doesn’t affect debt limit, doesn’t affect bonding capacity.
Tyler Kalachnik:  That’s correct.
Don Williams:  Okay.
Rick Reid:  What are the social services that you mentioned?

Tyler Kalachnik:  Um, they partner…this particular borrower partners with a lot of faith based organizations in the community usually for kind of like crisis, assistance for folks.  Of course it’s all voluntary, none of it’s mandatory for the residents.  Sometimes they’ve undertaken job training so those are the types of social services they usually add budgeting, things like that.

Marlin Weisheit:  Most of the housing out there is government subsided and that will continue won’t it?

Tyler Kalachnik:  Yes, it’s currently subject to a HUD, Housing Assistance Payment Contract that will be assigned to GMF-Indiana4, of course pending HUD approval but they’re in process with that.

Don Williams:  Okay, any other questions?

Roger Emmons:  Mr. President, I would add that you mentioned there’s nothing to sign, there is one (1) two-page document, and it’s the Approval of the Applicable…

Don Williams:  Right, I think he’s talking about Grant Applications.

Tyler Kalachnik:  Right, there’s no loan agreement or trust indenture that you need to sign.

Don Williams:  Right, okay, any other questions?

Marlin Weisheit:  I have none.

Don Williams:  Mr. Attorney, do you have any questions?

Adam Long:  I do not, thank you.

Don Williams:  Okay.  Anybody else have anything they’d like to say about this?  If not I would request a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Rick Reid:  Motion to close.

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  The Public Hearing is closed.  The Warrick County Commissioner Meeting is now returned to session.  

Tyler:  Kalachnik:  Thank you.

ACTION ON PUBLIC HEARING ~ With Respect to Not to Exceed $14,000,000 of Public Finance Authority Multifamily

Housing Revenue Bonds (GMF-Indiana4, LLC Project), Series 2013A and Taxable Series 2013A-T
Don Williams:  First item on the agenda as far as action is action on the Public Hearing that we just heard.  With respect to this fourteen million dollar ($14,000,000.00) Public Finance Authority Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, is there any further questions on that issue?
Marlin Weisheit:  I have none.

Rick Reid:  None.

Don Williams:  Okay, I entertain a motion.

Rick Reid:  Motion to approve.

Don Williams:  Do I have a second?

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  Have a motion and a second.  Is there anyone that would like to say anything before we take a vote?  All in favor say aye?  

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Aye.  Motion carries three (3) to zero (0).

AREA PLAN COMMISSION

No Business

Don Williams:  No APC Business today.

Rick Reid:  That’s good.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

March 11, 2013 @ 4:00p.m…Regular Session

March 14, 2013 @ 3:30p.m…Payroll Session

March 25, 2013 @ 4:00p.m…Regular Session

March 28, 2013 @ 3:30p.m…Payroll Session

Don Williams:  On the agenda under Approval of Minutes we have minutes for March 11th, Regular Session, March 14th, Payroll Session, March 25th , Regular Session and March 28th, Payroll Session.  Do you desire to take them all at one time or do you want to take them separately?
Rick Reid:  Was I at all those meetings?  There was one (1) meeting I missed, was that in April?

Don Williams:  In March?

Rick Reid:  No, I think it was in April so…I had the flu that day.  I think I’m okay.

Don Williams:  Oh, you were there.  You made muster.  
Rick Reid:  Hm?

Don Williams:  I said you made muster.  That’s a military term for ‘you were there at the proper point in time’.  
Rick Reid:  No…I didn’t make it to the Commissioners.

Don Williams:  Oh, that’s not the one where you got sent home?

Rick Reid:  No.

Don Williams:  Cause you were sick and I didn’t want to sit by you?

Laughter

Rick Reid:  Now the truth comes out.

Marlin Weisheit:  That was in April?

Rick Reid:  Yeah, so I think I’m okay.  Motion to approve those minutes.

Marlin Weisheit:  I’ll second all four (4).

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye. 

Don Williams:  Motion carries.  Thank you.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

Tony O’Neal, Supervisor, St. Mary’s Warrick EMS

EMS Monthly Report
Don Williams:  Okay, Items for Discussion, first if you’ll pull out your EMS Reports, Tony, if you would come on up, Mr. O’Neal, and we’ll look at your March numbers.
Tony O’Neal:  Thank you, Commissioners, Tony O’Neal, with St. Mary’s Warrick EMS.  We have the March Operational and Financial Report for March 2013.  In March we had three hundred ninety six (396) ambulance runs for the county, two hundred thirty (230) of those went to local hospitals, we had forty six (46) refusals, fifty two (52) hospital transfers, fifty one (51) of those were out of Warrick Hospital and one (1) out of Gateway.  We had thirty three (33) others which entailed disregards, no patient, or dead on scene and we had thirty (30) private runs for the month.  All of our Customer Satisfaction Reports came back satisfactory for March and we had a ninety seven percent (97%) success rate on our response time for the county.  We had twelve (12) runs that were outside the fifteen (15) minute time limit, our arrival time.  Ten (10) of those were in the northeast, northwest part of the county and two (2) were in the south.  Any questions on the numbers?  
Don Williams:  Any questions on the numbers before we go to Financials?  Okay, if you would let’s look at Financials.

Tony O’Neal:  On our collectables we were thirty one thousand two hundred eighty four dollars ($31,284.00) over budget so we had a very good month on funds coming in.  On our monthly expenses we were slightly over budget for the first time in a long time for sixty five dollars ($65.00), um, some of that was…if you look at supplies we were fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00) over on supplies.  We had to purchase some CPR equipment and some materials for the EMS week.  And also ‘others’ we sent two (2) of our paramedics to primary instructor courses which will benefit the county on having instructors so with that said we are still forty seven thousand seven hundred fifty two dollars ($47,752.00) under budget year-to-date for the county.  

Don Williams:  When you talk about a majority of that fifteen hundred ($1,500.00) being CPR equipment…?

Tony O’Neal:  Um, I think there’s about…

Don Williams:  I thought you just had a good pair of elbow, hands and wrists to do that.
Tony O’Neal:  Yeah, well, a lot of that is materials and we’ll actually re-coup some of that money.  A lot of that is for CPR training for like schools and so forth, we have to give books and stuff and we pay for that upfront and then as we have the classes we bill…

Marlin Weisheit:  Reimbursed.

Tony O’Neal:  We get reimbursed for that so that will come back into the budget.

Don Williams:  Okay.  Are there any questions on the Financials?  

Marlin Weisheit:  I have none.

Rick Reid:  I have none.

Request for New Ambulance (tabled from 3/15/13)

Don Williams:  Okay, anything else you’d like to talk about?

Tony O’Neal:  No, I know we tabled the discussion of the ambulance until this month but I would like to ask the commissioners if we can table that another month.

Don Williams:  Another month or until our May 13th meeting?

Tony O’Neal:  May 13th meeting, yes.

Don Williams:  Okay, yeah, I’d like to sit down with you and talk on that.

Tony O’Neal:  That would be great.

Don Williams:  If I have the permission of the other two (2) commissioners.

Marlin Weisheit:  Yeah, why don’t you do that?

Tony O’Neal:  Yeah, I’m working on some other things too I’d like to be able to present at that time.

Don Williams:  We’re looking at it…we’re not looking at a Rolls Royce.

Tony O’Neal:  I understood, yeah, alright.

Don Williams:  Okay, something within…less than what you return to us.

Tony O’Neal:  Okay, fair enough.

Marlin Weisheit:  Good luck with him, Tony.

Tony O’Neal:  Yeah, I’ll need it.

Marlin Weisheit:  Thank you.

Don Williams:  Thank you.

Scales Lake Dam Project ~ Deig Brothers Pay Request

Don Williams:  Okay, go ahead, Roger.  

Roger Emmons:  I think Bobby’s going to present the Scales Lake Dam Projects Pay Request.

Don Williams:  Okay, Mr. Howard.

Bobby Howard:  Okay, I have this Scales Lake Dam Pay Request for the amount…

Don Williams:  Hang on for just a minute, Bobby, if you would.  We’re getting a lot of feedback, when you’re not talking please make your microphones dead.  Okay, I think that’s better.

Bobby Howard:  This application for payment is in the amount of thirteen thousand five dollars and fifty cents ($13.005.50).  And I would recommend approval at this time.

Don Williams:  Where are we at on that project?  

Bobby Howard:  They are approximately seventy six percent (76%) complete.

Don Williams:  Getting closer, good.  Okay, any questions from the Board?

Marlin Weisheit:  No, I’ll make a motion to pay Deig Brothers their pay request.

Rick Reid:  Second that.

Don Williams:  Okay, motion and a second.  All that are in favor let it be known by saying aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Aye.  Motion carries.  Thank you.

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

Approve DotNetNuke Renewal for Website

Don Williams:  Okay, Mr. Administrator, Departmental Reports.
Roger Emmons:  The first item I have is to approve the DotNetNuke Renewal for our County Website.  All three (3) of the Commissioners were at the County Council’s meeting on April 11th, at which I asked the County Council if they would pay for this renewal, they did agree to do that.  At that meeting you gave me consensus to proceed in order to lock in the five hundred dollar ($500.00) savings.  I would need your approval today by motion.

Marlin Weisheit:  I’ll make a motion to approve the DotNetNuke Renewal for the Website.

Don Williams:  Do we have a second?

Rick Reid:  Second.

Don Williams:   Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.
Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Don Williams:  I would like to say, Roger, thank you for kind of hound dogging that and getting that taken care of.

Roger Emmons:  Thanks, Don.

Don Williams:  Did we vote on that?

Adam Long:  Yes.

Don Williams:  Okay.

Request to Approve In-Network Payment Treatment

Roger Emmons:  Next item, there’s no action needed on the second item about Request to Approve In-Network Payment Treatment.  The item is based… (Cannot hear him; his microphone is turned off)
Discuss Alternate Service Proposal from Aramark Uniform Services

Roger Emmons:  For the Discussed Alternate Service Proposal from Aramark, I request you table the decision to your May 13th meeting, Jack Cline is here from Aramark, I think he wanted to present the Agreement today and Commissioners of course at your discretion if you want to approve this subject to Adam’s approval…  (Cannot hear him; his microphone is turned off)
Don Williams:  If you would, Sir, please approach the mic and at least give us the nuts and bolts and we will have our attorney…if that’s the will of the board.

Jack Cline:  Good afternoon, my name is Jack Cline; I’m with Aramark Uniform Services.  We’re the current provider for Warrick County’s uniform program.  I have been working with Mr. Bobby Howard on a new proposal for uniforms.  The county has decided to go to a payroll deduct program for all uniform services.  We have set up a proposal in order to do that.  We have a proposal for the current uniforms.  Basically no change out of what they’re currently using.  We’d be offering a reduction to three dollars and fifty cents ($3.50) per week, per employee, if they stay with what they currently have.  That includes the Storm Water, Highway Department and Courthouse employees.  We’ve also had a proposal for new uniforms… which would be a change over, high visibility shirts and cotton jeans.  There would be a weekly cost of four dollars and ten cents ($4.10) that does include pick-up, delivery and processing of those.  There is no initial set up to change those uniforms out to the new clothing.  And basically that would be four ten ($4.10) a week.  The way I understand it if they stay at the current uniform program it would be approximately one hundred eighty two dollars ($182.00) per year, per employee.  If they opt to go with a new uniform program that would be approximately two hundred thirteen dollars ($213.00) per employee, per year.  As I understand it from Mr. Howard I think it’s going to be left up to the employees whether they want to stay with the program and pay for it on their own or whether they want to cancel and whatever employees decide not to go on the program can turn in their clothing at no penalty unless there’s loss of the uniforms at that time which have a target date of the 29th I believe, is that correct?
Bobby Howard:  Yes, currently we had the 29th I think with your contract and then I’ve asked them to go ahead by tomorrow to try to get as much as they can turned in so we can see how much we’re going to be short.

Jack Cline:  What the difference is…okay, okay.  In addition I understand that as part of the PPE (Personal Protective Equipment) for the Highway Department they were requiring steel toed shoes.  I believe they have to wear that to be on that highway crew.  Aramark has also offered to provide anyone who enrolls in the program up front either a pair of steel toed shoes or a winter jacket at no cost to the employee and I presented Mr. Howard with the pamphlets.  I also do have some samples that I’ll present to him as well but they have the option of getting either or on that so that will actually enable Aramark to help out the employees with the cost of…since they’re going to have to have that as PPE we’d like to offer that as well and that applies only to initial set up whenever they opt to renew the service agreement with us.

Bobby Howard:  And that includes all shirts and pants?  They have to have the full…?

Jack Cline:  Correct, that’s full enrollment in the program, we have outlined on this service proposal.  Currently our service proposal, or our service agreement that we’re operating under right now currently I believe we have about fifteen (15) months left on that, um, we are requesting a thirty six (36) month service agreement for these new services that I’ve discussed with you all.  Part of that service proposal includes no initial set up fee if they go with new uniforms.  It also includes a clause in the paperwork, or wording of the service agreement, that there is no price increases for the thirty six (36) months.  The weekly charge is the weekly charge; it’ll be from day one until the end of the agreement so it’s basically firm rates.  And then I already mentioned the incentive for the employees to enroll in the program. 
Don Williams:  Any questions from the Board.

Marlin Weisheit:  I have none, sounds good to me.

Don Williams:  Bobby?

Rick Reid:  What if in the thirty six (36) months if someone gets terminated or quits?  Are they still responsible for that?

Jack Cline:  They would not be responsible.  As soon as the uniforms are collected by our service personnel we take them off the invoicing and you wouldn’t be billed for the full year of service, yes, they would be able to be removed.

Don Williams:  Any other questions?

Marlin Weisheit:  Any new employees that would be hired during that thirty six (36) months would be allowed to join I guess at that time?

Jack Cline:  Yeah, you could enroll; we can have new enrollees…

Marlin Weisheit:  Under that same contract?

Jack Cline:  Yep, under those same rates, um, basically we try to work with the County cause, you know, I kind of understand the parameter that you guys have per year, per employee so I try to work with you guys to, you know, be able to satisfy that cost per year as well as give some options for some safety clothing in addition to what we’re doing now.

Don Williams:  Okay, any other questions?  Bobby, you have been working closely with Aramark.

Bobby Howard:  Right, except for I don’t have a service agreement similar to the one that we had already…our current one I guess and I think we need one of these in place before we can...and it probably needs to be identical.

Jack Cline:  Can I present that to you?

Bobby Howard:  Sure.

Jack Cline:  Okay, I have a new Service Agreement outside the proposal sheet that I think you have, Bobby.
Bobby Howard:  Yes.

Jack Cline:  Did you…would you all like copies of that as well?

Don Williams:  I don’t need a copy unless our attorney has one.

Jack Cline:  Okay.

Don Williams:  Bobby, did he cover…

Adam Long:  I’ll take a paper copy of it but I’d like also to have the electronic copy, this is a contract that we dealt with fifteen (15) months ago, maybe, somewhere around in there and we had made some revisions and things to it, I’d like to try and have those original revisions incorporated into this, of course we’ve got those other certifications and things that need to be added that are standard across all of our contracts but, yeah, a paper copy will be fine, I can write down my email address for you, give that to you and then you can email me an electronic version or email it to Bobby if you’ve been communicating with him and he can get it to me.

Jack Cline:  Yep, I can do that.

Don Williams:  Is there anything, any of the main points that he left out because if we approve this contingent on attorney approval…
Bobby Howard:  Right, I mean, at this time I have maybe twelve (12) people that have signed up, once we get the boots in I think we need to have another meeting out there with the employees and then we can discuss and answer all their concerns and then I’ll get you a full list of who are staying with the uniforms and who wants new uniforms and if they want boots or jackets if this gets approved.  And then…and I don’t know if you got Roger’s email earlier today but I think it’ll probably be cleaner if everybody turned in their uniforms even if they plan on staying with their existing so we have a count of where everybody’s at and…


Adam Long:  I do have a question just if the Board is going to make a motion to approve subject to my approval.  A couple of questions I think might…

Don Williams:  I think you probably ought to make it subject to both Bobby’s and your approval.

Adam Long:  Okay.

Don Williams:  Cause I think Bobby…

Adam Long:  Well, and one (1) question that I have is, is there a minimum participant threshold that Aramark is requiring for the pricing to remain at that level and say these meetings take place and we find out only eight (8) people are going to participate or…

Don Williams:  My understanding is there’s not.

Adam Long:  Okay.

Jack Cline:  There’s a twenty five dollar ($25.00) minimum stop charge that would be the only minimum that would apply but…

Adam Long:  And is that for an aggregate of all employees paying weekly for twenty five bucks ($25.00)?

Jack Cline:  Yes.

Adam Long:  So that would be like seven…

Jack Cline:  Yeah, so if you’d reduce it down to two (2) employees or, you know, three (3) employees then you would be within that range.

Adam Long:  Okay.  Subject to Bobby and I’s approval I think that would be sufficient.

Don Williams:  Okay, I’d entertain a motion.

Rick Reid:  Motion to approve the contract subject to Adam’s and Bobby’s approval.

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  We have a motion and a second.  All approve let it be known by saying aye.
Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Motion carries.  Thank you, Sir, I appreciate you coming…
Jack Cline:  Okay, I’d like to drop these copies off here before I…

Marlin Weisheit:  Thanks, Jack.

Rick Reid:  Thank you.

FMLA Request Approved by the Board on 4-8-13 Contingent Upon Submittal of Proper Paperwork; Code of Ordinance; Carquest Demo
Roger Emmons:  The last item I have listed here is just to let the Board know that the FMLA request on April 8th, on the submittal of proper paperwork that paperwork has now been submitted.  That was for the employee in the Health Department.  I do have a couple of other things that came in late.  First of all Angie brought over these updates to the County Code of Ordinances booklet and, Tim, for your information Angie now has the Warrick County Code of Ordinances on the county’s website at www.warrickcounty.gov. I’d like to acknowledge that at this meeting.  Of course everybody is aware of that, the Commissioners’ office staff will take yours and put them in your books for you.  The other item I’d like to bring up I just got late this evening, this afternoon, is the Final Inspection/Project Completion Form from Megan at Economic Development Coalition of Southwest Indiana.  It’s for the Carquest Demolition Project; there are places for Chief Elected Official, President Williams’, signature and they put in Joe Grassman, Purchasing Agent for the other confirming signature that we’re okay with this project.  And this will now make it so that the grant can continue the closeout process.
Bobby Howard:  That is correct, Roger, we can’t do anything to that site until this is closed out.

Don Williams:  What’s the will of the board?

Marlin Weisheit:  I’m okay going ahead and signing it.  Do you need a motion on that?

Don Williams:  Yes we do.

Marlin Weisheit:  I’ll go ahead and make that a motion.

Don Williams:  I’ll sign the completion letter.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Motion carries.

Roger Emmons:  Thank you, Mr. President.

Don Williams:  There’s one (1) thing our building inspector is doing an inspection of the old Lillpop building.  Has he submitted the results?
Roger Emmons:  I’ve not received one.  I’ll talk to him tomorrow and let you know what he says.  I think he’s probably going to make a report for you.  

Don Williams:  Thank you.  Anything else?

Roger Emmons:  That’s it.
COUNTY AUDITOR

Claims

Don Williams:  County Auditor, Claims for us, Sir.
L.B. “Dixie” Dugan:  Dixie Dugan, Warrick County Auditor, I have invoices in the amount of nine hundred seventy four thousand seven hundred sixteen dollars and twelve cents ($974,716.12).
Don Williams:  What’s the will of the board?

Marlin Weisheit:  Make a motion to pay the claims.

Rick Reid:  Second.

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor let it known by saying aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.
Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Motion carries.  Go pay the claims, Mr. Auditor.

PURCHASING

JC Security Camera Replacement

Don Williams:  Purchasing, Mr. Grassman.

Joe Grassman:  Joe Grassman, Purchasing.  I’d originally intended on presenting a quote to replace and install new cameras in the west parking lot of the Judicial Center.  What we had proposed was on the pole where the single camera now sits we were going to put a bracket, put two one hundred eighty (180) degree cameras and end up with a three hundred sixty (360) degree radius picture capability with IP cameras that could be focused in on something very far away some very good cameras if you want to get some detail out of them.  What happened is I started looking at the quote, I ran into some problems on…I’m not happy with some of the pricing and we’re currently under negotiation with a company on that so I’m not ready to present this at this time but I wanted to let you know where we’re at on it.  Do you have any questions?
Rick Reid:  I saw the quality of that…how he can blow something up, it looks pretty awesome.

Joe Grassman:  Yeah, it’s pretty cool, yeah.  It’ll even cover a lot of the new parking lot that’s been exposed with the Carquest being down.

Don Williams:   Is that all you have for us, Joe?

Joe Grassman:  That’s it.

Marlin Weisheit:  Thank you, Joe.

Don Williams:  Okay, thank you.
COUNTY ATTORNEY
Contract with Eagle Accounts ~ Collection Services for Clerk’s Office

Adam Long:  The first item that is listed for me it would be the contract with Eagle Accounts.  This is a Collection Service Contract for the Clerk’s Office.  Essentially we were with another entity recently; I can’t remember the name of them off the top of my head.  The clerk sent a notice of termination to that entity.  There were some collection issues and some communications issues and it was mutually agreeable between the Clerk and the account servicing entity that they would terminate their relationship…
Roger Emmons:  CRS.

Adam Long:  CRS.  And so that has been terminated.  This new group, Eagle Accounts I think is more financially advantageous than the company that we were with previously so that’s a plus.  The representative at Eagle that I dealt with was very reasonable.   As a matter of fact I think they incorporated every single change that I made to the document and I’d recommend its approval.

Don Williams:  Okay, any questions from the board.

Marlin Weisheit:  I’ll make a motion to approve the contract with Eagle Accounts for the Clerk’s Office.

Rick Reid:  Second.

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Motion carries, thank you.

Transfer of Fuquay Property to SWMD

Interlocal Agreement

Resolution 2013-___

Deed
Adam Long:  The next item that I had on my list was the Transfer of the Fuquay Property to the Solid Waste Management District.  As the board is aware negotiations had commenced with respect to the transfer of a certain parcel of real estate at the northeast corner of the intersection of Fuquay and Gardner Roads just south of Chandler.  The property contains approximately five (5) acres, um, and it is actually the northeast corner of that intersection, it’s not an adjacent parcel to that.  The parcel number is 87-12-02-200-055.000-020 and what I have today is an Interlocal Agreement between the Warrick County Board of Commissioners and the Solid Waste Management District.  I have a Resolution 2013 which I don’t know what the…which one are we on now?
Roger Emmons:  2013-05.

Adam Long:  2013-05, which would be the Resolution which essentially by statute I think it’s 36.1.11-8 which is Transfer of Property between Government Entities.  Joint Resolutions of Substantial Similarity need to be passed by each entity so this is a resolution that’s very similar to the resolution that Solid Waste is going to pass.  This also will be passed, a similar resolution will be passed, by the County Council pursuant to 36.1.11.3C1, the County Council has to approve all transfers of property in excess of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00).  And then lastly, um, once those two (2) documents are voted on then I have a warranty deed which transfers the property to the Solid Waste Management District and also retains a right of first refusal in the event that they cease to operate or they desire to sell the property, they offer to sell it back to us and then we would acquire it pursuant to the statutes relative to acquisition of real estate.

Roger Emmons:  Mr. Attorney, I would add that attorney for Solid Waste Management District, Todd Glass, brought me the original Interlocal Agreement with the original signatures of certain members of the Solid Waste Management District except for the Board of Commissioners and so I do have that ready for their signatures as well.  
Don Williams:  I had a question, Mr. Attorney, if…and this is pretty well a done deal, I think we all want it to happen but there is a probably better than fair chance in the next two (2) or three (3) years that the State Government would disband the Solid Waste Districts and put everything back under the Board of Commissioners of the County.  If that happens would we have to…you know, if we have first right of refusal, you know, why would we need that if it’s got to come back to us.

Adam Long:  This would be if they continue for twenty (20) years, maybe the legislature changed their mind and they were going to sell the property then we would be able to buy it back.  Property is not the easiest thing to get a hold of so it’d be nice to try to get it back.

Don Williams:  Absolutely but if it was to disband and it came back under the county then we wouldn’t have to go through the re-buying of it or anything.
Adam Long:  If the Solid Waste Management District was disbanded and the property of that district was automatically absorbed by the commissioners then it would just automatically revert back to us by operational law.

Don Williams:  Okay, I was pretty sure, okay, thank you.

Adam Long:  One thing with respect to the motions all of them would be contingent upon Council approval, which I think the 7th, Roger, is that their meeting day?

Don Williams:  May 8th.

Adam Long:  I think they’re going to bring it up.

Don Williams:  May 8th at noon.  

Rick Reid:  Council’s meeting the 2nd.

Don Williams:  Are you talking about Council or the Solid…

Adam Long:  Oh yeah, the Council, they’ve…

Don Williams:  Oh, the Council is May 2nd at 7:15.

Adam Long:  Okay.

Don Williams:  The Solid Waste District meets May 8th at noon.

Adam Long:  Okay.

Don Williams:  We need to do these one (1) at a time?

Adam Long:  Yes, I would do the…

Don Williams:  Okay, we got it here.

Rick Reid:  Do you want to do the Interlocal first?

Don Williams:  Let’s do the Resolution first.

Rick Reid:  Okay, I make a motion to approve the Resolution 2013-05 based on the Council approval.

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  Have a motion and a second.  Do we need to read this Resolution?
Adam Long:  Resolutions I believe do need to be read and if you’d like I can do it, if you don’t want to.

Don Williams:  No, I really don’t.

Adam Long:  Roger, you said 2013-05?
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Don Williams:  Okay, I have a motion and second on the floor.  All in favor say aye.
Rick Reid:  Aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.
Don Williams:  Aye.  Motion passes three (3), zero (0).  Okay, Interlocal Agreement.

Rick Reid:  I’d like to make a motion to approve the Interlocal Agreement based on the Council approval.  

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye. 

Don Williams:  Aye.  Motion carries three (3), zero (0).  Do we need to act on the deed?

Adam Long:  Subject to Council approval and all agreements being executed I guess…

Don Williams:  We need to approve the transfer of the deeds subject to Council approval.

Adam Long:  And that the Solid Waste approves all the documents necessary to effect the transfer.

Rick Reid:  So moved.

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  I have a motion to approve the transfer of the deed as long as our Board, which it just has and the Solid Waste Board approves…
Adam Long:  And Council approves.

Don Williams:  And Council approves.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Motion carries.  Okay, next item.


Grant Agreement EDS# D25-14-062 Between Indiana DOC and Warrick County for WCCC

Adam Long:  The next item I have on the list is the Warrick County Community Corrections Grant.  I’ve had the opportunity to review the agreement, um, everybody was very swift in providing the attachments, I got attachments from various places, I think they’re maybe ten (10) people on the email and I got eight (8) exhibits A, B, C and D maybe from each…each from a different person but they all came pretty quick.  Had the opportunity to review the Grant Agreement everything appears to be in order, it’s a standard department of Corrections Form.  I will note that Mr. O’Daniel, on page…I think it’s page seven (7), stated that the notice to the grantees shall be sent to community corrections so this would be one of those situations where Community Corrections would receive any notice of termination and we might not have any notice.  If we wanted to we could add Roger’s, County Commissioner onto the notice line if you felt inclined to do so but I don’t know how we did it last time.
Don Williams:  What was it initially?

Adam Long:  It was blank.

Don Williams:  Yeah, I would like Roger on that line also.

Adam Long:  Yeah, we could just create a second notice block off to the side and add Roger on there.  I think since we’re executing it we’d probably…

Don Williams: Neither person is listed on it right now, right?  Nobody’s listed on it, right?

Adam Long:  JT took like a stamp and it’s like a multi line stamp, it says Community Corrections, it has the address and stuff and he stamped it on that line.

Don Williams:  That’s the twenty thousand dollar ($20,000.00) grant?  Okay.  What do you need from us?  Just to approve the Grant?

Adam Long:  Yeah, motion to approve the Grant Agreement and then I think this requires all three (3) signatures.

Rick Reid:  Motion to approve the Grant Agreement.

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Aye.  Motion carries.

Adam Long:  Yeah, that requires all three (3) signatures.

Don Williams:  So there’s a line right above his information you can put ‘Warrick County Board of Commissioners’.
Adam Long:  Yeah, but you’d need to add the address because when…

Don Williams:  Okay, we got to have the address on it?

Adam Long:  Yeah, you’d have to have the address.

Don Williams:  Okay.

Roger Emmons:  Debbie’s going to pick that up tomorrow so I can add that on.

Adam Long:  Yeah, you could just write it off to the side by hand, that would be totally fine.

Roger Emmons:  Okay.

Adam Long:  Unless the Department of Corrections kicks it back for that but I doubt they would.

Roger Emmons:  I would type it in.

Adam Long:  Okay.  You don’t want me writing it in there.
Don Williams:  Counsel, you have anything else, Counsel?

Adam Long:  That’s all I have, thanks.

Don Williams:  Okay, thank you.

COUNTY ENGINEER

Bridge 271 ~ Amendment to Consultant Services Contract

Don Williams:  Highway Engineer.

Bobby Howard:  The first item I have is Amendment number one (1) to the LPA Consulting Contract for Bridge number 271 over Little Pigeon Creek, um, this amendment is due to change orders on the bridge project and…which caused the…it was unforeseen changes that caused the schedule to be increased a little longer than what was foreseen and it’s an additional cost and it’s been negotiated to twenty two thousand three hundred twenty three dollars and eleven cents ($22,323.11) and of that cost I would ask that if this is approved it’s approved subject to INDOT paying eighty percent (80%) of those costs, INDOT has given me a verbal agreement that that will happen. 
Don Williams:  What was that number again?

Bobby Howard:  Twenty two thousand three hundred twenty three dollars and eleven cents ($22,323.11).  

Rick Reid:  So we’ll be out about forty four hundred dollars ($4,400.00)?

Bobby Howard:  Forty five hundred dollars ($4,500.00).

Marlin Weisheit:  I make a motion to approve that amendment pending INDOT’s approval.
Rick Reid:  Second.

Don Williams:  I have a motion and second.  The actual amount is four thousand four hundred sixty four dollars and sixty two cents ($4,464.62) is the way I…my math says so…motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Motion carries.  Thank you.

COUNTY HIGHWAY
Don Williams:  Is there anything out at the Highway area you want to talk about while I’ve got you?
Bobby Howard:  There are two (2) items, first of which I just wanted to be on the record I guess, there’s a parcel in the subdivision of Stonehaven that had a zoning violation and it’s under everyone’s understanding I guess that the County Highway Department will be responsible for the clean-up but I probably needed officially have this board approve the County Highway Department to be the agent that does the clean-up.

Adam Long:  I think the same issue came up before in a zoning violation case where Ms. Rector actually requested the board approval that the highway department do that.
Marlin Weisheit:  That’s why we got a court order to use the highway department I think for clean up…

Bobby Howard:  Well, it just says the ‘County’ or ‘Agent thereof’; it didn’t say ‘the Highway Department’ but I assume that’s what will happen so I probably need this board’s approval before I…

Roger Emmons:  You’re an agent, Bobby.

Bobby Howard:  I probably want this officially approved before I proceed.

Marlin Weisheit:  It’s the most practical way for us to get the job done no doubt.

Bobby Howard:  Right.

Don Williams:  Is there any questions from the Board?  If not I’ll entertain a motion.

Rick Reid:  Motion to approve.

Marlin Weisheit:  Second.

Don Williams:  Motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Aye.

Bobby Howard:  Thank you.

Don Williams:  I would like to state to the Sheriff that when the Highway Department gets ready to get out there I would like at least one (1) Deputy if not two (2), whatever you think is appropriate because it will not be a fun exercise.
Bobby Howard:  I’d prefer two (2), myself.  Whatever you got.

Don Williams:  The biggest and best.

Marlin Weisheit:  These are things that I’m sure the Sheriff’s Department don’t want to deal with but unfortunately we’re kind of forced into…

Don Williams:  Yep.

Marlin Weisheit:  We have so many violations there and a court order to clean it up and it’s went through the process and the property owners have had every opportunity to come into compliance and they haven’t so we’re being forced to go out and clean it up.  
Don Williams:  You have another item, Mr. Engineer?

Bobby Howard:  Yes, I have one (1) other item to discuss.  As you’re aware, road funding at the state level has been a hot topic and there is some budgets passed that include increased road funding to the house and the senate and as part of the senate bill they are attaching the amount of the surtax that each county has presently incorporated to the amount that they will give the county.  And at this time, as you are aware, the surtax percentage for Warrick County is currently at seven percent (7%) of this maximum level which is ten percent (10%).  Right now we’re at seven percent (7%) and I want this board’s approval to be able to go to the county council meeting to request that the county council review the possibility of increasing the surtax to include this extra revenue back from the state toward our roads.  This is a…the surtax is a Road User Fee per say and the only ones who benefit from it, you know, benefit from using the roads and it’s paid on the licensing fees and it ranges, depending on year make and model of vehicles, um, up to around twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) if you have a forty thousand dollar ($40,000.00) new vehicle twenty five dollars ($25.00) a year basically is the max that I’ve seen so far and it depends on the make and model of your vehicle on what it will be.  If you have a 2006 vehicle it may be ten dollars ($10.00) a year, it…and I have some numbers to…
Don Williams:  I think actually the figures I looked at there was two (2) different ones and one of them was a twenty five thousand dollar ($25,000.00) vehicle and I thought it was no change and I think the other one that was forty something thousand dollars vehicle…
Bobby Howard:  It was three dollars and seventy five cents ($3.75) a year.  Yes, I have those numbers here.  2006 model if it’s forty five thousand dollar ($45,000.00) vehicle it’s about three dollars and seventy five cents ($3.75) a year.  If it’s a twenty five thousand dollar ($25,000.00) vehicle or less it’d be no change.

Don Williams:  Anything older than that it won’t be a change…

Bobby Howard:  There would be no change, yes.

Don Williams:  Newer models like the 2013 what’s the high one there? 

Bobby Howard:  2013 model if it’s around forty four thousand dollar ($44,000.00) vehicle it increased by twenty four dollars forty two cents ($24.42) a year is what was estimated.

Rick Reid:  You’re going to pay more than that just hitting one (1) pot hole.

Don Williams:  You could, and I have just a…I have talked to several of our community entities and so far the reception I’ve got from all of them has been positive, over all.

Bobby Howard:  So, I didn’t know how much you…

Don Williams:  So, I would…you just need a consensus?  We don’t need to vote I don’t think on that…I think we ought to vote…Council always say ‘did the Commissioner approve this’, so I entertain a motion for Bobby to present trying to change the Wheel Tax/Surtax back to the 2000 level.  Everybody likes taxes to go backwards, I’m one of those people, so I would like for him to present that to the County Council that we move that tax back to the 2000 level.
Rick Reid:  That is a motion isn’t it?

Don Williams:  That is a motion.

Rick Reid:  Yeah, I second that.

Don Williams:  I have a motion and a second.  All in favor say aye.

Marlin Weisheit:  Aye.

Rick Reid:  Aye.

Don Williams:  Aye.  Motion carried.  So please, please do that for us.

Bobby Howard:  Okay, thank you.  That’s all I have.
COUNTY SHERIFF
Don Williams:  Sheriff, do you have anything for us?

Sheriff Brett Kruse:  I don’t think so.
COMMISSIONERS ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
Commissioner Williams:  Commissioner Reid?
Commissioner Reid: Yeah, I have a couple of things.  One (1) would be for Adam on the Smoking Ban Policy, have you done anything on that yet?
Adam Long:  Working on it.  It’s a work in progress.  I’m pulling from a few smoking bans, one thing I’ve noticed across the board is that I haven’t seen any outdoor unenclosed space banning out of some of the earlier versions that I’m looking at which I think might pose an issue for us so I’m going to have to do a little research on what the open air aspects would be of it because it’s my understanding what I’ve been asked to do is create one that encompasses all property whether it’s inside or outside.
Commissioner Reid:  Does Vanderburgh County have that?
Adam Long:  They don’t have one for just like a parking lot.  They were very helpful by the way with providing me with information, I mean, within…
Commissioner Reid:  But their distance from the court house is a lot farther isn’t it?
Adam Long:  I think under the current one it’s twenty five (25) feet which is three (3) times plus a foot the state requirement.
Commissioner Weisheit:  Of the eight (8) feet, yeah.
Commissioner Reid:  Then the next thing is, I was kind of concerned about going to the Right to Life and they said we had six (6) abortions in Warrick County.  Five (5)?  And I’d kind of like to look into that and see…
Commissioner Williams:  Actually I don’t know if we need to investigate that.
Commissioner Reid:  Okay.
Commissioner Williams:  Because I think the Right to Life will do more than an adequate job.
Commissioner Reid:  I agree but, you know…
Commissioner Williams:  I mean, they’re the ones that walked up to us and said hey, when a hospital performs an abortion they have to let the State Health Department and they’re the ones who came to me and said you had five (5) which…I’d rather had that information before I got to the Right to Life…
Commissioner Reid:  Yeah, right, sure, well I’d like to let them know that we’ll help them anyway we can, too as a Commissioner, too.
Commissioner Williams:  Yeah, and I think we should.  I just don’t think we need to launch an investigation cause from what I understand they’re very thorough in investigating those things.  They’re not ready to publicize the ‘who’ but she gave me a name of the hospital that did it so…
Commissioner Reid:  And the last thing…it might have been the last meeting I wasn’t here was that Proclamation on the Day of Prayer, May 2nd, have we done anything on that yet?
Commissioner Williams:  We don’t make one every year, we’ve made a county one that stays in effect.
Commissioner Reid:  Okay, alright.
Commissioner Williams:  Yeah, we do have a Proclamation that is in effect that we…
Commissioner Reid:  I didn’t know if we had to do that every year.
Commissioner Williams:  It was either three (3) or four (4) years ago.
Roger Emmons:  That was in 2010.
Commissioner Reid:  So we don’t have to do it again?
Commissioner Williams:  No, it’s…we made it to last.
Commissioner Reid:  Hm?

Commissioner Williams:  We made it to last.
Commissioner Reid:  Okay, good, alright, it makes it easy on us.
Commissioner Williams:  It’s for the first Thursday…
Roger Emmons:  In May…
Commissioner Reid:  May 2nd…
Roger Emmons:  2010 and on.
Commissioner Reid:  That’s all I have then.
Commissioner Williams:  Okay, thank you.  You have anything, Commissioner Weisheit?
Commissioner Weisheit:  I do not.
Commissioner Williams:  I do not.  Entertain a motion.
Commissioner Reid:  Motion to adjourn.
Commissioner Weisheit:  Second.
Commissioner Williams:  Motion and a second.  We are adjourned.  Thank you.








____________________________________








DON WILLIAMS, PRESIDENT








____________________________________








MARLIN WEISHEIT, VICE PRESIDENT








____________________________________








RICHARD REID, MEMBER

ATTEST:

____________________________________

L.B. DUGAN, AUDITOR

WARRICK COUNTY, INDIANA
